
4/12/2024 11:48 AM 

                 

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone: (920) 478-3025 
    Fax: (920) 478-2021 

www.waterloowi.us 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE OF A COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE 

CITY OF WATERLOO COMMON COUNCIL 
  
 

 
Pursuant to Section 19.84 Wisconsin Statutes, notice is hereby given to the public and news media, that a public meeting 
will be held to consider the following: 
 

COMMITTEE:  FINANCE, INSURANCE & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
DATE:   April 18, 2024 
TIME:   5:30 p.m. 
LOCATION:  Municipal Building Council Chamber, 136 N. Monroe Street  
   via remote conference or in-person for participants and public 
 
1) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
2) APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: March 21, 2024. 

 
3) PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
4) NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Bylaws Discussion with the Fire Dept.   

 
b) Town of Waterloo Radio Payment Update 

 
c) March 2024 Financial Statements: Payroll $88,327.18, General Disbursements $240,977.91  and  

Clerk/Treasurer’s Reports[see on municipal website] 
 

d) 2023 Audit Review Discussion 
 

e) Correction on Hawthorn and Stone Guaranteed TIF Revenue 
 

f) 2024-04 Resolution 2023 Financial Carry-Over Approvals 
 

g) Discussion on Plan-It Software fee increase  
 

h) ARPA Funds Discussion 
 

i) Ordinance 53-8 update  
 

 
5) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
6) ADJOURNMENT 
 
Jeanne Ritter 
Clerk/ Deputy Treasurer 
        
Committee Members:  Thomas, Weihert and Kuhl       Posted, Emailed & Distributed: 04/12/2024 

PLEASE NOTE: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may attend the above meeting(s) to 
gather information. No action will be taken by any governmental body other than that specifically noted. Also, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to 
accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request such services please contact the clerk’s 
office at the above location.  

https://www.waterloowi.us/clerk-treasurer/pages/monthly-financial-statements


 

 

CITY OF WATERLOO FINANCE, INSURANCE & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE: MEETING MINUTES  
March 21, 2024 

[a digital recording of this meeting also serves as the official record] 
 

 
1) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL. Thomas called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. Members in person: Thomas, 

Weihert and Kuhl.  Remote: none.  Absent: none. Others attending in person or remote: Mayor Quimby; Treasurer 
Nelson; Chief W. Benisch; Alder J. Haseleu; Police Chief D. Sorenson; DPW Supervisor C. Yerges  and Clerk Ritter. 

 
2) APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: January  18, 2024 , January 24, 2024 and February 1, 2024. Motion [Weihert/Kuhl] VOICE 

VOTE:  Motion carried.   
 
3) PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minute Time Limit) none 
4) NEW BUSINESS 

a) 2023 Department Head Reviews [NOTES:(1) Documents provided by Committee Chair. (2) The committee may 
convene in closed session per Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(c) “considering employment, promotion, compensation or 
performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises 
responsibility.”] 
i) Fire Chief – 5:30 pm 

Motion to go into closed session [Kuhl/Weihert] ROLL CALL  Yes 3 No 0 Motion carried. 
Motion to return to open session [Kuhl/Weihert] ROLL CALL Yes 3 No 0 Motion carried. 
 

b) City of Waterloo Organizational Chart. Informational 
 

c) February 2024 Financial Statements: Payroll $83,050.67, General Disbursements $1,170,733.27  and Clerk/Treasurer’s 
Reports[see on municipal website]  [Kuhl/Weihert] VOCIE VOTE: Motion carried.   
 

d) Town of Waterloo Fire Radio Payment Extension Request – add to next agenda in April.   
 

e) Jensen Proposal to Replace 2 Furnaces in Municipal Building. Motion to approve 2 furnaces [Kuhl/Weihert] Motion 
carried.   
 

f) Van Holten’s purchase agreement [NOTE: The Finance Committee may meet in closed session per Wis. Stat. 19.85 
(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other 
specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. Upon concluding a closed 
session, the Committee will reconvene in open session.] [Kuhl/Weihert] Motion to recommend to council.  VOICE VOTE: 
Motion carried.   

 
5) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS Reduce Special Meetings if possible.   Update ordinance 53-8. 

 
6) ADJOURNMENT. MOTION: [Kuhl/Weihert] To adjourn. VOICE VOTE:  Motion carried. Approximate time 6:52pm  

 
 
Jeanne Ritter 
Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 

https://www.waterloowi.us/clerk-treasurer/pages/monthly-financial-statements


































Scott,  
 
Thank you for the update!  
 
I have attached an updated invoice to include 2022, 2023 and 2024 with a due date of 
12/31/2024.  
 
For all future payments starting in 2025, please use the amortization schedule as your 
invoice.   
 
If you have any questions, please let me know.  
 
Thank you, 
 
Lana  
 
From: Scott Hassett <pshassett@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2024 8:41 AM 
To: Jeni Quimby <mayor@waterloowi.us> 
Cc: Tim Thomas <alder3@waterloowi.us>; Lana Nelson <lnelson@waterloowi.us>; Schroeder Cindy 
<clschroeder@hotmail.com>; Frey Laurie <towntreas9267@gmail.com> 
Subject: Re: Radio Share-Payment plan 

 
Hi Jeni.  Last night we decided to bring the original payment plan up-to-date by the end of 
the year.  
  That would include $4518.53 for 2022, $5237.88 for 2023, and $5147 for 2024.  
  Let me know if that works. 
        Scott 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

 

mailto:pshassett@yahoo.com
mailto:mayor@waterloowi.us
mailto:alder3@waterloowi.us
mailto:lnelson@waterloowi.us
mailto:clschroeder@hotmail.com
mailto:towntreas9267@gmail.com


City of Waterloo

Financial highlights

April 18, 2024

Client service team

Justin Hoagland, Senior Manager, CPA

© 2023 Baker Tilly US, LLP



City of Waterloo
General fund results

Summarized income statement
Actual Final budget Variance

Revenues and other financing sources 2,486,360$            2,218,558$            267,802$                

Expenditures and other financing uses 2,164,380              2,257,816              93,436                    

   Net change in fund balance 321,980$               (39,258)$                361,238$                

Fund balance category definitions
Nonspendable - amounts cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable form or because

          legal or contractual requirements require them to be maintained in tact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by an external source.
Committed - amounts constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed through formal
          action of the governing body.

Assigned - spendable amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are not

          considered restricted or committed.

Unassigned - residual amounts that have not been classified within other categories above.

$14,691 

$-

$-

$287,527 

$1,426,576 

$1,728,794 

$46,758 

$-

$-

$362,055 

$998,001 

$1,406,814 

 $-  $400,000  $800,000  $1,200,000  $1,600,000  $2,000,000

Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned

Total

General fund - fund balance by category2022 2023

© 2023 Baker Tilly US, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted.



City of Waterloo
General fund - fund balance trends

Fund balance policy:
   The policy is to maintain a working capital fund of 25% - 33% of the current year general fund final

   budgeted expenditures. The balance at year-end was $1,426,576 or 66.9%. The graph below includes both 

   unassigned and assigned fund balance, which is why it's showing 80.4% at year-end.

Other reference values
GFOA recommends a minimum of no less than 2 months (16.7%) of general fund expenditures.

Median reference value generated from 2019 - 2022 Baker Tilly municipal client data for population ranges
         less than 10,000.

9.8%

57.5%

52.7%

63.8%

80.4%

36.1%

46.0%
38.9% 38.3%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Unrestricted general fund - fund balance 
as a percentage of expenditures 

General Fund Actual Policy minimum Policy maximum Reference - Median

© 2023 Baker Tilly US, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted.



City of Waterloo
General obligation debt

Debt management policy:
          The City does not currently have a debt management policy.
          Legal debt margin capacity (5% of the city's total equalized value).

Actual percentage of debt limit at 12/31/23: 25%

Total debt outstanding by type at 12/31/2023
General obligation Revenue Debt Other Total

City 3,912,733$                 -$                    -$                 3,912,733$            
Utility 460,000                      14,312,549         -                   14,772,549            

     Total 4,372,733$                 14,312,549$       -$                 18,685,282$          

Comparative metrics available online through the Wisconsin Policy Forum.

                 Select "Debt" -- options for custom comparisons or comparisons by county

https://wispolicyforum.org/research/municipal-datatool-examining-and-comparing-wisconsin-cities-and-
villages/

$2,608,305
$3,968,747

$3,610,570

$4,866,831
$4,372,733

$11,708,960 
$12,234,985 

$13,333,770 

$15,747,320 

$17,179,060 

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

 $16,000,000

 $18,000,000

 $20,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

General obligation debt capacity

Total G.O. debt outstanding G.O. debt limit

© 2023 Baker Tilly US, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted.



City of Waterloo
Governmental funds - debt service 

Current and prior year data
2023 2022

Principal 454,098$                    683,739$            
Interest 118,615                      76,030                

     Total 572,713$                    759,769$            

Non-capital expenditures 4,178,282$                 4,140,701$         

Other reference values
Median reference value generated from 2019 - 2022 Baker Tilly municipal client data for population ranges
          less than 10,000.

26.3%

32.5%

27.1%

18.3%

13.7%

16.6%

19.2%

16.6% 16.7%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Debt service to non-capital expenditures

City of Waterloo Reference - Median

© 2023 Baker Tilly US, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted.



Waterloo Water & Light Commission

Unrestricted Reserves

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Year end balance 731,550$       812,038$       545,015$       1,067,766$    1,472,866$    
  Months on hand 1.50 1.73 1.06 1.82 2.39

Debt Coverage

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Actual 2.51 2.30 2.80 3.15 3.63
Required 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25

Investment in Capital

5,842,080 5,636,763 
6,158,716 

7,022,073 
7,406,547 

4,862,694 4,800,434 4,920,121 
5,549,905 5,733,215 

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Operating results

Operating revenues Operating expenses

Equity, 49% Debt, 51%



Waterloo Water & Light Commission
Electric Utility Results

Water Utility Results

Sewer Utility Results

3,759,867 3,704,621 
4,053,003 

4,555,111 
4,288,710 

$3,572,244 $3,515,807 $3,521,494 

$4,069,283 $4,079,701 

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Operating results

Operating revenues Operating expenses

830,981 867,634 874,609 880,824 
939,226 

$481,236 
$399,562 

$533,455 
$476,969 $512,072 

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Operating results

Operating revenues Operating expenses

1,251,232 
1,064,508 

1,231,104 

1,586,138 

2,178,611 

$809,214 $885,065 $865,172 
$1,003,653 

$1,141,442 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Operating results

Operating revenues Operating expenses









                 

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone: (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 RESOLUTION #2024-04   

2023 Financial Carry-Over Approvals 
Whereas, the following chart defines the line item categories proposed for 2023-2024 carry over designation by the 
Clerk/Treasurer’s office, with minor residual debit modifications expected to account for remaining 2023 invoices received in 
2024. 

 
 
Therefore Be It Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Waterloo, Wisconsin, that it hereby authorizes the 2023-
2024 carry over amounts as stated with final amounts to include any residential debits for accounts listed which have may have 
remaining 2023 invoices, received in 2024, after resolution adoption. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____________, 2024. 
 
City of Waterloo 
        Signed:  
  
        _______________________________ 
        Mayor Jenifer Quimby 
Attest: 
 
__________________________Jeanne Ritter, City Clerk  

http://www.waterloowi.us/


 

 

                 

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone: (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ORDINANCE #2024-10 

 
An Ordinance Amending Section §53-8 Purchases. 

 
The Common Council of the City of Waterloo, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:  
 

Section 1: § 53-8 Purchases. 

No equipment or supplies shall be purchased by any City official unless previously budgeted. Equipment and 

supplies which cost over $2,500 $500 shall also be approved by the appropriate committee and the Council; 

however, emergency purchases not to exceed $2,500 $500 may be approved by the department head and the Mayor 

or the appropriate committee chairperson. 

Section 2: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force after its passage and publication in a manner provided for by law.  
 
 
Acted on and adopted at a result meeting of the Common Council on April 18, 2024.  
 
 

CITY OF WATERLOO 
 

_________________________ 
Jenifer Quimby, Mayor 

 
Attest:  
 
_________________________ 
Jeanne Ritter, City Clerk 
 
 
Date Adopted_____________  
 
 
Date Published______________ 

http://www.waterloowi.us/


Page 1 of 1  

City of Waterloo Finance, Insurance & Personnel Committee -- Annual Calendar  
revised: 08/21/2023 

 
 

 Meeting night: 3rd Thursday of month at 6:00 pm  
 Monthly recurring:  review of disbursements, payroll, and treasurer’s reports  

 
JANUARY 
 Review of Department Heads as needed. 
 Audit Prep 

FEBRUARY  
 Audit 

MARCH 
 Fee Schedule Review 

APRIL  
 § 53-12 Review of debt schedules & debt refunding opportunities. 
 Audit Presentation third Thursday 

MAY 
 Addressing items raised in financial audit. 
 Resolution for carryover after audit is complete 

JUNE 
 Mayor’s Budget start date; build Council consensus for budget policy objectives; practice two-year budgeting. 
 Tax Incremental Finance Districts, review. 
 WPPA Contract multi-year contract, renewal (when applicable) 2024-26 

JULY 
 Addressing items raised in worker compensation audit. 
 Review and recommend Current Year Budget Amendment #1 (Jan. – June) 

AUGUST 
 Budget deliberation. 

SEPTEMBER 
 § 53-14 Updating capital improvement plan. 
 Budget deliberation. 

OCTOBER 
 Initial review of calendar year insurance renewal policies. 
 Final Committee budget recommendation to full City Council. 

NOVEMBER 
 Final review of calendar year insurance renewal policies.  
 

DECEMBER 
 Review and recommend Current Budget Amendment #2 (July – Dec.) 

 


